

DRAFT VOTING LIST

Proposal for a regulation of the European Parliament and of the Council on compulsory licensing for crisis management and amending Regulation (EC) 816/2006

2023/0129(COD)

Rapporteur: Adrián Vázquez Lázara

Draft report: (AMs 1-51) - Fdr 1286830 - PE 753.706 v01-00

Amendments: (AMs 52 - 300) - Fdr 1290039 - PE 756.107 v01-00

INTA opinion (AMs 1 - 28): Fdr 1291970 - EP 753.730 v03-00

Concerned text	AM	Tabled by	Remarks	Rapp	Vote
Articles 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 New recital 6a	CA 1	Rapporteur	If adopted, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 129, 130, 131, 17, 18, 136, 140, 133, 134, 19, 135, 137, 138, 139, 20, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 21, 147, 148, 149, 22, 151, 150, 153, 152, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 160, 159, 23 and 161 fall	+	+
Article 1 – paragraph 1	123	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 1 – paragraph 1	124	Didier	Falls if CA 1 adopted <i>Comp with 123</i>	-	
Article 1 – paragraph 1	125	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 adopted <i>Comp with 123, 124</i>	+	
Article 2 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	126	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 adopted or 125 NOT adopted	+	
Article 2 – paragraph 1 – point a	127	Basso, Beck	Fall if CA 1 adopted Identical	-	
	128	Didier			
Article 2 – paragraph 1 – point a	129	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 or 127 adopted	-	
Article 2 –	130	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	

paragraph 1 – point a a (new)					
Article 2 – paragraph 2	131	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	17	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point -a (new)	18	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a a (new)	136	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 1 or 18 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point f a (new)	140	Didier	Falls if CA 1, 18 or 136 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a	133	Didier	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a	134	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 or 133 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a	19	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1, 133 or 134 adopted	+	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a	135	Maurel	Falls if CA 1, 134 or 19 adopted <i>Comp with 133</i>	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point a b (new)	137	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point e	138	Maurel	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 3 – paragraph 1 – point e	139	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 or 138 adopted	-	
Article 4 – paragraph 1	20	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 4 –	141	Maurel	Falls if CA 1 or 20 adopted	-	

paragraph 1					
Article 4 – paragraph 1	142	Didier	Falls if CA 1, 20 or 141 adopted	+	
Article 4 – paragraph 1	143	Wölken	Falls if CA 1, 20, 141 or 142 adopted	+	
Article 4 – paragraph 1	144	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 1, 20, 141, 142 or 143 adopted	-	
Article 4 – paragraph 1 a (new)	145	Hautala	Falls if CA 1, 20, 141, 142, 143 or 144 adopted	-	
Article 4 – paragraph 1 a (new)	146	Didier	Falls if CA 1, 20 or 143 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	21	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point a	147	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point a a (new)	148	Maurel	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point b	149	Didier	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point b	22	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 or 149 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point b	151	Hautala	Falls if CA 1, 149 or 22 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point b	150	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1, 149 or 22 adopted <i>Comp with 151</i>	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point c	153	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point c	152	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 or 153 adopted	-	

Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point d	154	Didier	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point d	155	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 or 154 adopted	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point d	156	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 or 155 adopted <i>Comp with 154</i>	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point e	157	Maurel	Fall if CA 1 adopted Identical <i>Deletion</i>	+	
	INTA 7				
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point e	158	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 or 157 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point f	160	Hautala	Falls if CA 1 adopted	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point f	159	Złotowski	Falls if CA 1 adopted <i>Comp with 160</i>	-	
Article 5 – paragraph 1 – point f a (new)	23	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 1 adopted	+	
Article 5 – paragraph 2	161	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Fall if CA 1 adopted Identical <i>Deletion</i>	-	
	162	Złotowski			
	163	Didier			
Articles 6, 7	CA 2	Rapporteur	If adopted, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 24, 170, 177, INTA 8, 25, 171, INTA 9, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 178, 179, 26, 27, 181, 180, 182, 183, 184, 28, 185, 186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 191, 192, 29, 193, 194, 195, 197, 30, 196, 198, 31, 201, 199, 200, 202, 203, 204, 32, 205, 33, 206, 207, 208, 34, 209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215, 216, 217, 218 and 219 fall	+	+
Article 6 –	164	Basso, Beck,	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	

paragraph 1		Lebreton			
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – introductory part	165	Didier	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – introductory part	166	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 165 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – introductory part	167	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2, 165 or 166 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – introductory part	168	Maurel	Falls if CA 2, 165, 166 or 167 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point a	169	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point a a (new)	24	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point a a (new)	170	Wölken	Falls if CA 2 or 24 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point g a (new)	177	Didier	Falls if CA 2, 24 or 170 adopted	+	
Article 6 paragraph 2 point b	INTA 8		Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point b a (new)	25	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point c	171	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 paragraph 2 point c	INTA 9		Falls if CA 2 or 171 adopted	-	
Article 6 –	172	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	

paragraph 2 – point d					
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point f	173	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point f	174	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 or 173 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point f	175	Didier	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Comp with 173, 174</i>	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 2 – point f a (new)	176	Didier	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point a	178	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point a a (new)	179	Wölken	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point a a (new)	26	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 or 175 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b	27	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b	181	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 27 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b	180	Maurel	Falls if CA 2, 27 or 181 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b	182	Wölken	Falls if CA 2, 27, 181 or 180 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b	183	Didier	Falls if CA 2, 181 or 180 adopted <i>Comp with 27, 182</i>	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 4 – point b a (new)	184	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 or 26 adopted	-	

Article 6 – paragraph 5	28	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 6 – paragraph 5	185	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 28 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 5	186	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2, 28 or 185 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 6	187	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 6 – paragraph 6	188	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 187 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 1 – point a	189	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 1 – point b	190	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 1 – point c	191	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 1 – point c a (new)	192	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 2	29	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 2	193	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 29 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	194	Basso, Beck	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	195	Stancanelli, Złotowski	Falls if CA 2 or 194 adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	197	Didier	Falls if CA 2, 194 or 195 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	30	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2, 194, 195 or 197 adopted	+	

part					
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	196	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Comp with 194, 195, 197, 30</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point a	198	Didier	Falls if CA 2 adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point a	31	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Comp with 198</i>	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point a	201	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 31 adopted <i>Comp with 198</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point a	199	Wölken	Falls if CA 2, 31 or 201 adopted <i>Comp with 198</i>	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point a	200	Maurel	Falls if CA 2, 31, 201 or 199 adopted <i>Comp with 198</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point b	202	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point c	203	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – point c	204	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 or 203 adopted or 144 NOT adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 3 – subparagraph 1 a (new)	32	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 or 195 adopted or 29 NOT adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 4	205	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 4	33	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 or 205 adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 4	206	Didier	Falls if CA 2, 205 or 33 adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 5	207	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	

Article 7 – paragraph 5	208	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 adopted <i>Comp with 207</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – introductory part	34	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 2 adopted or 29 or 193 NOT adopted	+	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – introductory part	209	Didier	Falls if CA 2, 32 or 34 adopted or 29 or 193 NOT adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point a	210	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 32 adopted or 29 or 193 NOT adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point b	211	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 32 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point b	212	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 32 adopted <i>Comp with 211</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point c	213	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 32 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point c	214	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 or 32 adopted <i>Comp with 213</i>	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point c a (new)	215	Hautala	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 6 – point c a (new)	216	Maurel	Falls if CA 2 or 215 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 7	217	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 adopted or 144 NOT adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 7	218	Didier	Falls if CA 2 or 217 adopted	-	
Article 7 – paragraph 8	219	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 2 adopted	-	
Articles 8, 9, 10, 13, 13a, 14, recital 32a	CA 3	Rapporteur	If adopted, 220, 222, 224, 225, 227, 228, 35, 229, 230, 231, 235, 233, 234, 236, 237, 36, 238, 239, 37, 240, 241, 242, 243, 38, 244, 245, 247,	+	+

			248, 39, 249, 250, 40, 251, 252, 253, 254, 255, 256, 257, 258, 259, 266, 267, 41, 42, 132, 270, 271, 272, 43, 274, 275, 276, 44, 277, 278, 45, 14 and 106 fall		
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point a	220	Didier	Fall if CA 3 adopted Identical	-	
	221	Didier			
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point a	222	Maurel	Fall if CA 3 or 220 adopted Identical	-	
	223	Hautala			
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point a	224	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3, 220 or 222 adopted	-	
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point b	225	Didier	Fall if CA 3 adopted Identical	+	
	226	Basso, Beck, Lebreton			
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point d	227	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point f	228	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point h	35	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point h	229	Didier	Falls if CA 3 or 35 adopted	-	
Article 8 – paragraph 1 – point h	230	Maurel	Falls if CA 3, 35 or 229 adopted	-	
Article 8 – paragraph 2	231	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted or 144 NOT adopted Deletion	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 1	235	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 1	233	Wölken	Falls if CA 3 or 235 adopted	-	
Article 9 –	234	Didier	Falls if CA 3 or 235 adopted	-	

paragraph 1			<i>Comp with 233</i>		
Article 9 – paragraph 1	236	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 or 235 adopted <i>Comp with 233, 234</i>	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 1	237	Złotowski	Falls if CA 3 or 235 adopted <i>Comp with 233, 234, 236</i>	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 1 a (new)	36	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 9 – paragraph 2	238	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	+	
Article 9 – paragraph 2	239	Złotowski	Falls if CA 3 or 238 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 2	37	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3, 238 or 239 adopted	+	
Article 9 – paragraph 2	240	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3, 238, 239 or 37 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 2 a (new)	241	Didier	Falls if CA 3, 239, 37 or 240 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 3 – introductory part	242	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 3 – point b	243	Złotowski	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 3 – point d a (new)	38	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 9 – paragraph 3 – point d a (new)	244	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 or 38 adopted	-	
Article 9 – paragraph 4	245	Didier	Fall if CA 3 adopted Identical <i>Deletion</i>	-	
	246	Basso, Beck, Lebreton			
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point a	247	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 10 –	248	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	

paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point a			<i>Comp with 247</i>		
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point c a (new)	39	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point a a (new)	249	Didier	Falls if CA 3 or 39 adopted	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point b	250	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point c b (new)	40	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point b a (new)	251	Didier	Falls if CA 3 or 40 adopted	+	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point c	252	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point d	253	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 1 – subparagraph 1 – point e	254	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 2 – point a	255	Złotowski	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 10 –	256	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	

paragraph 2 – point b					
Article 10 – paragraph 3	257	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 3	258	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 or 257 adopted	-	
Article 10 – paragraph 4	259	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 11	INTA 10			-	-
Article 11 – title	260	Hautala	Falls if INTA 10 adopted	-	-
Article 11 – paragraph 1	261	Maurel	Falls if INTA 10 adopted	-	-
Article 11 – paragraph 1	262	Hautala	Falls if INTA 10 or 261 adopted	-	-
Article 12 paragraph 3	INTA 11			-	-
Article 12 – paragraph 3	264	Hautala	Falls if INTA 11 adopted	-	-
Article 12 – paragraph 3	263	Maurel	Falls if INTA 11 or 264 adopted	-	-
Article 12 – paragraph 5	265	Maurel		-	-
Article 12 paragraph 5	INTA 12		<i>Comp with 265</i>	-	-
Article 12 paragraph 6 introductory part	INTA 13			-	-
Article 12 paragraph 6 point a	INTA 14			-	-
Article 12 paragraph 6 point b	INTA 15			-	-
Article 13 – paragraph 2	266	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 13 –	267	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	

paragraph 2			<i>Comp with 266</i>		
Article 13 – paragraph 2	41	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 or 266 adopted <i>Comp with 267</i>	+	
Article 13 a (new)	42	Vázquez Lázara	Fall if CA 3 adopted Identical	+	
	268	Hautala			
	269	Wölken			
Article 2 – paragraph 2 a (new)	132	Didier	Falls if CA 3, 35 or 42 adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 1	270	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted or 144 NOT adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 1	271	Didier	Falls if CA 3 or 270 adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 1	272	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 or 271 adopted <i>Comp with 270</i>	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 2	43	Vázquez Lázara	Fall if CA 3 adopted or 144 NOT adopted Identical <i>Deletion</i>	+	
	273	Basso, Beck, Lebreton			
Article 14 – paragraph 2	274	Didier	Falls if CA 3, 35, 42 or 43 adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 3	275	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 adopted or 144 NOT adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 4	276	Didier	Falls if CA 3 adopted	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 4	44	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 14 – paragraph 4	277	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 3 or 44 adopted or 144 NOT adopted <i>Comp with 276, 44</i>	-	
Article 14 – paragraph 4 a (new)	278	Wölken	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Article 14 – paragraph 6	45	Vázquez Lázara	Fall if CA 3 adopted Identical	+	
	279	Basso, Beck, Lebreton			
Articles 15, 16	CA 4	Rapporteur	If adopted, 280, 281, 46, 282, 283 and 47 fall	+	+

Article 15 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	280	Złotowski	Falls if CA 4 adopted	-	
Article 15 – paragraph 1 – point a a (new)	281	Złotowski	Falls if CA 4 adopted	-	
Article 15 – paragraph 1 – point c	46	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 4 adopted	+	
Article 16 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	282	Złotowski	Falls if CA 4 adopted	-	
Article 16 – paragraph 1 – point a a (new)	283	Złotowski	Falls if CA 4 adopted	-	
Article 16 – paragraph 1 – point c	47	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 4 adopted	+	
Articles 19, 20, 21, 22, 25, 26, Annex, new recital 40a	CA 6	Rapporteur	If adopted, 284, 48, 49, 285, 286, 287, 288, 232, 292, 293, 295, 296, 298, 50, 297 and 51 fall	+	+
Article 19 – paragraph 1	284	Didier	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 19 – paragraph 1	48	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 6 or 284 adopted	+	
Article 19 – paragraph 2 a (new)	49	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 6 adopted	+	
Article 19 – paragraph 4	285	Złotowski	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 20 – paragraph 2 a (new)	286	Didier	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 20 – paragraph 2 b (new)	287	Didier	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 21 – paragraph 1	288	Didier	Fall if CA 6 adopted Vote together	-	

Article 21 – paragraph 1 a (new)	289	Didier			
Article 21 – paragraph 1 b (new)	290	Didier			
Article 21 a (new)	291	Didier		-	-
Article 8 a (new)	232	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 6, 288 or 291 adopted	-	
Article 22 – paragraph 1 – introductory part	292	Hautala	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 22 – paragraph 1 – point d	293	Hautala	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 23 – paragraph 1 – point a Regulation (EC) No 816/2006 – Article 18a	294	Hautala	No vote Inadmissible <i>INTA exclusive competence</i>		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a new	INTA 16		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a a new	INTA 17		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a b new	INTA 18		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -ac new	INTA 19		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a d new	INTA 20		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a e new	INTA 21		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		

Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a f new	INTA 22		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a g new	INTA 23		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point -a h new	INTA 24		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point a	INTA 25		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point a	INTA 26		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point a	INTA 27		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 23 paragraph 1 point a	INTA 28		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Article 26 – title	295	Hautala	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Article 26 – paragraph 1 a (new)	296	Hautala	Falls if CA 6 adopted	-	
Annex I	298	Maurel	Fall if CA 6 adopted or 136, 137 or 168 NOT adopted Identical Deletion	-	
	299	Basso, Beck, Lebreton			
	300	Hautala			
Annex – title	50	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 6 or 298 adopted	+	
Annex – line 2 – column 3	297	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 6 or 298 adopted	+	
Annex	51	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 6 or 298 adopted	+	
Citation 1 All recitals, except 6a (in CA 1), 37 (INTA exclusive), 32a	CA 7	Rapporteur	If adopted, 52, 53, 54, 1, 55, 56, 57, INTA 1, 58, 2, 59, 60, 3, 61, 62, 63, 4, 64, 65, 66, 68, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 79, 5, 81, 82, 80, 83, 6, 7, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88, 8, 89, 90,	+	+

(in CA 3), 40a (in CA 6), 28, 29, 30			91, 92, 9, 10, 11, 12, 93, 94, 95, 96, 13, 98, 99, 100, 103, 104, 105, 15, 107, 108, 110, 109, 111, 112, 113, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, INTA 6, 120, 121, 122 and 16 fall		
Citation 1	52	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 1	53	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 1	54	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 53 adopted	-	
Recital 1	1	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 or 54 adopted <i>Comp with 53</i>	+	
Recital 2	55	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 2	56	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 55</i>	+	
Recital 3	57	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 3	INTA 1		Falls if CA 7 or 57 adopted	-	
Recital 3	58	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if 35, 38, 42, CA 7, 57 or INTA 1 adopted	-	
Recital 4	2	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 5	59	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 6	60	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted or 144 NOT adopted	-	
Recital 7	3	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 7	61	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 3 adopted	-	
Recital 8	62	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 8	63	Didier	Falls if CA 7 or 62 adopted	+	
Recital 8	4	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 or 62 adopted <i>Comp with 63</i>	-	
Recital 8	64	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7, 62, 63 or 4 adopted	-	
Recital 9	65	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 9	66	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Fall if CA 7 adopted Identical <i>Comp with 65</i>	-	
	67	Didier			
Recital 12	68	Basso, Beck,	Fall if CA 7 adopted	-	

		Lebreton	Identical		
	69	Didier	<i>Deletion</i>		
Recital 14	70	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Recital 15	71	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Recital 15	72	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 71 adopted	-	
Recital 15	73	Didier	Falls if CA 7, 71 or 72 adopted	-	
Recital 16	74	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 16	75	Didier	Falls if CA 7 or 74 adopted	-	
Recital 16	76	Wölken	Falls if CA 7 or 75 adopted <i>Comp with 74</i>	-	
Recital 16	77	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 74, 75, 76</i>	-	
Recital 17	78	Basso, Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 17	79	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 78</i>	-	
Recital 18	5	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 18	81	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 5</i>	+	
Recital 18	82	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 5, 81</i>	-	
Recital 18	80	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 or 5 adopted <i>Comp with 81, 82</i>	-	
Recital 19	83	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 19	6	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 or 83 adopted	+	
Recital 20	7	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 20	84	Stancanelli, Złotowski	Falls if CA 7 or 7 adopted	-	
Recital 20	85	Didier	Falls if CA 7, 7 or 84 adopted	-	
Recital 20	86	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 7, 84, 85</i>	-	

Recital 20	87	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 85 adopted Comp with 7, 84, 86	-	
Recital 21	88	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 21	8	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 or 88 adopted	+	
Recital 22	89	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 22	90	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted Comp with 89	-	
Recital 22	91	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 or 89 adopted Comp with 90	-	
Recital 22	92	Wölken	Falls if CA 7 or 89 adopted Comp with 90, 91	-	
Recital 22	9	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted Comp with 89, 90, 91, 92	+	
Recital 22 a (new)	10	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 23	11	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 24	12	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 24	93	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 or 12 adopted	-	
Recital 24	94	Didier	Falls if CA 7, 12 or 93 adopted	-	
Recital 24	95	Hautala	Falls if CA 7, 12, 93 or 94 adopted	-	
Recital 25	96	Didier	Fall if CA 7 adopted Identical Deletion	-	
	97	Beck, Lebreton			
Recital 25	13	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 or 96 adopted	+	
Recital 27	98	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 27	99	Didier	Falls if CA 7 or 98 adopted	-	
Recital 27	100	Hautala	Falls if CA 7, 98 or 99 adopted	-	
Recital 28	INTA 2		Falls if INTA 10, 261 or 262 NOT adopted	-	
Recital 28	101	Hautala	Falls if INTA 2 adopted or INTA 10, 261 or 262 NOT adopted	-	
Recital 29	INTA 3		Falls if INTA 10, 261 or 262 NOT adopted	-	

Recital 29	102	Hautala	Falls if INTA 3 adopted or INTA 10, 261 or 262 NOT adopted	-	
Recital 30	INTA 4			-	-
Recital 31	103	Beck	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 32 a (new)	14	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 3 adopted	+	
Recital 32 a (new)	106	Hautala	Falls if CA 3 or 14 adopted	-	
Recital 32	104	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if 35, 38, 42, CA 7, 14 or 106 adopted	-	
Recital 32	105	Didier	Falls if 35, 38, 42, CA 7, 14, 106 or 104 adopted	-	
Recital 32 b (new)	15	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Recital 32 b (new)	107	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 15 adopted	-	
Recital 33	108	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 33	110	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 or 108 adopted	-	
Recital 33	109	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 108 adopted <i>Comp'with 110</i>	-	
Recital 34	111	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 35	112	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 36	113	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 37	INTA 5		No vote Adopted without vote (Rule 57)		
Recital 37	114	Hautala	No vote Inadmissible <i>INTA exclusive competence</i>		
Recital 38	115	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 38	116	Didier	Falls if CA 7 or 115 adopted	-	
Recital 38	117	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 or 115 adopted <i>Comp with 116</i>	-	
Recital 39	118	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	
Recital 40	119	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted	-	

Recital 40	INTA 6		Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 119</i>	-	
Recital 40	120	Didier	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Comp with 119, INTA 6</i>	-	
Recital 40	121	Beck, Lebreton	Falls if CA 7 or 120 adopted <i>Comp with 119, 120, INTA 6</i>	-	
Recital 41	122	Hautala	Falls if CA 7 adopted <i>Deletion</i>	-	
Recital 41 a (new)	16	Vázquez Lázara	Falls if CA 7 adopted	+	
Final vote – Draft as amended (Roll-call vote)					

COMPROMISE AMENDMENTS

CA 1

Articles 1, 2, 3, 4, 5

New recital 6a

Article 1

Subject matter

This Regulation has the objective to ensure that ~~*in-crisis a temporary and non-exclusive Union compulsory license may be granted to protect the public interest in the context of cross-border crisis or emergency situations in*~~ the Union ~~*has access to crisis-relevant products*~~ (Greens 123). This Regulation lays down rules on the procedure and conditions for the granting *as a last resort* of a Union compulsory licence of intellectual property rights that are necessary for the supply of crisis-relevant products to the Member States in the context of a Union crisis or emergency mechanism (EPP 124). To this end, *if no prior voluntary agreement has been reached within four weeks (S&D 143) between right holder and licensee*, the Commission may grant *a Union compulsory license*.

Article 2

Scope

1. This Regulation establishes Union compulsory licensing of the following intellectual property rights in force in one or more Member States:

- (a) patents, including published patent applications;
- (b) utility models; or
- (c) supplementary protection certificates;

2. This Regulation is without prejudice to the rules laid down by other Union legal acts regulating copyright and related rights, including Directive 2001/29, Directive 2009/24 and the sui generis rights granted by Directive 96/9/EC on the legal protection of databases.

Article 3

Definitions

For the purposes of this Regulation, the following definitions apply:

(-a new) “crisis mode or emergency mode” means a crisis mode or an emergency mode, as applicable, listed in the Annex to this Regulation, which has been activated or declared in the context of a Union crisis or emergency mechanism listed in that Annex in accordance with one of the Union acts listed therein (RE 18);

(a) ‘crisis-relevant products’ means products or processes that are indispensable for responding to a crisis or emergency or for addressing the impacts of a crisis or emergency in the Union *and for which the grant of a compulsory licence is the only means of ensuring the sufficient and timely availability and supply of such products or processes, as determined by the Commission through the guidance of the advisory body in accordance with Article 6 (EPP 133, RE 19, Greens 134)*

(b) ‘relevant activities’ means the acts of making, using, offering for sale, selling or importing.

(c) ‘rights-holder’ means a holder of any of the intellectual property rights referred to in Article 2(1);

(d) ‘protected invention’ means any invention protected by any of the intellectual property rights referred to in Article 2(1);

(e) ‘Union compulsory licence’ means a compulsory licence granted by the Commission to exploit a protected invention of crisis-relevant products for any of the relevant activities in the Union;

(f) ‘customs authorities’ means customs authorities as defined in Article 5, point (1), of Regulation (EU) No 952/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council¹³;

Article 4

Union compulsory licence

The Commission may grant a Union compulsory licence ~~where in the event of~~ a crisis mode or an emergency mode ~~listed in the Annex to this Regulation has been activated or declared in accordance with one of the Union acts listed in that Annex. (RE 20, EPP 142, 146, S&D 143) in the event no voluntary agreement with a view to ensuring the supply of crisis-relevant products has been reached between right-holder and the potential licensee within four weeks.~~

New Recital 6a

The Commission might only issue a Union compulsory license for any crisis emergency-related product where the rights holder, who has been given the opportunity to engage in negotiations with a potential licensee, did not reach an agreement within 4 weeks.

Article 5

General Conditions of a Union Compulsory licence

1. The Union compulsory license ***that may be granted by the Commission in accordance with Article 4 shall, notwithstanding the obligations to be fulfilled by the licensee in accordance with Article 10 (RE 21):***

(a) be non-exclusive and non-assignable, except with that part of the enterprise or goodwill which enjoys such compulsory licence;

(b) have a ***strict limitation concerning scope, field of use , necessary quantities, and a duration that is ~~limited to the~~ fully in line with the specific purpose for which the compulsory licence is granted and limited is issued, as well as strictly linked*** to the scope and duration of the crisis or emergency mode ***in the framework of under*** which it is granted ***within the Union (RE 22, EPP 149, ECR 150);***

(c) be strictly limited to the relevant ***and properly justified (ECR 152)*** activities of crisis-relevant products in the Union;

(d) only be granted against payment of an adequate remuneration to the rights-holder ***determined in accordance with article 9 ; (EPP 154)***

(e) be ***strictly*** limited to the ***precisely defined*** territory of the Union ***(ECR 158)***

(f) only be granted to a person deemed to be in a position to exploit the protected invention in a manner that permits the proper carry out of the relevant activities of the crisis-relevant products and in accordance with the obligations referred to in Article 10;

(fa) clearly state that the licensee is responsible for any liability or warranties related to the production and distribution of crisis-relevant products, excluding the rights-holder from product liability claims. (RE 23)

2. A Union compulsory licence for an invention protected by a published patent application shall cover a patent granted based on that application, provided that the granting of that patent takes place while the Union compulsory licence is valid.

3. A Union compulsory licence for an invention protected by a patent shall cover a supplementary protection certificate issued with reference to that patent, provided that the transition from patent protection to protection conferred by a supplementary protection certificate takes place while the Union compulsory licence is valid.

CA 2

Articles 6 and 7

Article 6

Advisory body

1. When the Commission considers the granting of a Union compulsory licence, it shall without undue delay consult an advisory body.

2. The advisory body referred to in paragraph 1 shall be the advisory body competent for the Union crisis or emergency mechanism as listed in Annex I to this Regulation (the ‘competent advisory body’). For the purposes of the present Regulation, the competent advisory body, ***which is to act in the public interest (Greens 189, 190)***, shall assist and advise the Commission as regards the following tasks:

(a) the gathering of crisis-relevant information, market intelligence and the analysis of those data;

(aa new) the assessment of whether the obligation to afford the rights-holder an opportunity to engage in negotiations for a voluntary agreement to be reached within four weeks, as specified in Article 4 has been complied with; (RE 24, S&D 170, EPP 177)

(b) the analysis of the crisis-relevant information gathered by Member States or the Commission and aggregated data received by other crisis-relevant bodies at Union and international level;

(ba new) the determination of crisis-relevant products; (RE 25)

(c) the facilitation of exchanges and sharing of information with other relevant bodies and other crisis-relevant bodies at Union and national level, as well as at international level, where appropriate;

(d) the identification of the rights protecting the crisis-relevant product;

(e) the establishment of whether there is a need to grant a Union compulsory licence;

(f) the identification and consultation of the representatives of right holders or their representatives as well as potential licensees and consulting other *stakeholders and* economic operators, *including* industry, *academia and civil society*; (*Greens 173, Left 174*)

(g) the establishment, if relevant, of whether the criteria for termination or modification of the Union compulsory licence set out in Article 15 have been fulfilled.

3. The advisory body shall cooperate and coordinate closely, where appropriate, with other relevant crisis-related bodies and with intellectual property offices at Union and national level.

4. For the purpose of the present Regulation, the Commission:

(a) shall ensure participation and invite representatives of other crisis-relevant bodies at Union level as observers to the relevant meetings of the advisory body in order to ensure coherence with the measures implemented through other Union mechanisms; and

(aa) shall invite representatives of the European Parliament as observers to the relevant meetings of the advisory bodies, where possible under the applicable legal acts referred to in Annex; (S&D 179)

(b) may invite *representatives of the national authorities responsible for issuing compulsory licences under national law, representatives of the European Parliament (S&D 182)*, representatives of economic operators, potential licensees, stakeholder organisations, social partners and experts to attend meetings of the advisory body as observers (*RE 27*)

5. In the absence of any existing competent advisory body, the tasks referred to in paragraph 2 shall be performed by an ad hoc advisory body set up by the Commission (the ‘ad hoc advisory body’). The Commission shall chair the ad hoc advisory body and ensure its secretariat. ~~*Each Member State shall have the right to be represented in.*~~ The ad hoc advisory body *shall be composed of representatives of the institutions and bodies of each Member State that exercise the competence to grant national compulsory licences under national law (RE 28 , EPP 185)*

6. The Commission shall adopt an implementing act laying down the rules of procedure for the ad hoc advisory body referred to in paragraph 5. The rules of procedure shall specify that the ad hoc advisory body shall not be set up for a period exceeding the duration of the crisis or emergency. *The rules of procedure shall specify that the ad hoc advisory body shall enforce stringent safeguards to avoid any potential conflicts of interest, and to ensure accountability and transparency.* That implementing act shall be adopted in accordance with the examination procedure referred to in Article 24 (3). (*Left 187, Greens 188*)

Article 7

Procedure for granting a Union compulsory licence

1. The competent or, where relevant ad hoc, advisory body referred to in Article 6 shall provide the Commission with an opinion without undue delay. That opinion shall be issued in accordance with the rules of procedure of the advisory body and shall contain an assessment of the need for a Union compulsory licence and the conditions for such licence. The opinion shall take account of the following:

(a) the nature of the crisis or emergency;

(b) the scope of the crisis or emergency and how it is expected to evolve;

(c) the rights and interests of the rights-holder and the potential licensee ;

(d) existing national compulsory licences reported to the Commission in accordance with Article 22 in order to avoid overlaps or a situation of overproduction; (RE 32, EPP 213)

(e) the shortage of crisis-relevant products and the existence of other means than a Union compulsory licence that could adequately and swiftly remedy such shortage.

2. The opinion of the advisory body shall not be binding *(RE 29, EPP 193)* on the Commission. The Commission may set a time limit for the advisory body to submit its opinion. The time limit shall be reasonable and appropriate to the circumstances of the situation, taking particular account of the urgency of the matter.

2a. The Commission shall take the utmost account of the opinion of the advisory body. Where the Commission does not follow the opinion of the advisory body, it shall explain the reasons for its decision to the advisory body, without prejudice to the Commission's powers under paragraphs 7 and 8 of this Article.

3. Before ~~the granting of a Union compulsory licence, the Commission~~ *issuing the opinion, the advisory body* shall give the rights-holder and the licensee an opportunity to comment *within a reasonable timeframe* on :

(a) the possibility to *promptly (RE 31, S&D 199, Left 200, Greens 201)* reach a voluntary licensing agreement with manufacturers on intellectual property rights for the purpose of manufacturing, using and distributing the crisis-relevant products *and the fulfilment of the conditions referred to in pursuant to Article 4(1a) for conducting meaningful negotiations for that purpose (EPP 198)*

(b) the need to grant the Union compulsory licence;

(c) the conditions under which the Commission intends to grant the Union compulsory licence, including the amount of the remuneration.

4. The Commission shall **identify and** notify the rights-holder and the licensee as soon as possible of the fact that a Union compulsory licence may be granted. ~~Wherever the identification of the rights-holders is possible and does not cause significant delay,~~ the Commission shall notify ~~them the rights-holders~~ individually (**RE 33, EPP 206**)

5. When the Commission considers the granting of a Union compulsory licence, it shall without undue delay publish a notice to inform the public about the initiation of the procedure under this article. This notice shall also include, where already available and relevant, information on the subject of the compulsory licence and an invitation to submit comments in accordance with paragraph 2. The notice shall be published in the Official Journal of the European Union.

~~6. When assessing whether a Union compulsory licence is to be granted, the Commission shall consider the following:-~~

~~(a) the opinion referred to in paragraph 2;-~~

~~(b) the rights and interests of the rights-holder and the licensee;-~~

~~(c) existing national compulsory licences reported to the Commission in accordance with Article 22.-~~

7. Where the Commission finds that the requirements for a Union compulsory licence are met, the Commission shall grant it by means of an implementing act. The implementing act shall be adopted in accordance with the advisory procedure referred to in Article 24(2). On duly justified imperative grounds of urgency relating to the impacts of the crisis, the Commission shall adopt immediately applicable implementing acts in accordance with the procedure referred to in Article 24(4). In case of procedure under Article 24(4), the implementing act shall remain in force for a period not exceeding 12 months.

8. When adopting the implementing act, the Commission shall ensure the protection of confidential information. While respecting the confidentiality of the information, the Commission shall ensure that any information relied on for the purpose of its decision is disclosed to an extent that allows to understand the facts and considerations that led up to the adoption of the implementing act.

CA 3

**Articles 8, 9, 10, 13, 13a, 14
Recital 32a**

Article 8

Content of the Union compulsory licence

1. The Union compulsory licence shall specify the following:

(a) the patent, patent application, supplementary protection certificate or utility model for which the licence is granted ~~or, where the identification of those rights would significantly delay the granting of the licence, the non-proprietary name of the products which are to be manufactured under the licence;~~

(b) the right-holder, ~~provided they can be identified with reasonable efforts having regard to the circumstances, including the urgency of the situation;~~

(c) the licensee, in particular the following information:

- (1) name, trade name and registered trade mark;
- (2) contact details;
- (3) unique identification number in the country where the licensee is established;
- (4) where available, the Economic Operators Registration and Identification (EORI) number;

(d) the duration for which the Union compulsory licence is granted;

(e) the remuneration to be paid to the rights-holder determined in accordance with Article 9;

(f) the non-proprietary name of the crisis-relevant product which is to be manufactured under the Union compulsory licence and its commodity code (CN code) under which the crisis-relevant product is classified, as defined in Council Regulation (EEC) No 2658/87;

(g) the details referred to in Article 10(1)(c), (d) and (e) allowing the identification of the crisis-relevant product manufactured under the Union compulsory licence and, where applicable, any other specific requirement under Union legislation applicable to the crisis-relevant products and allowing its identification.

(h) measures complementing the compulsory licence, *as referred to in Article 13a, including, where strictly necessary to achieve the objective of the compulsory licence, the obligation for the rights-holder to disclose trade secrets to the licensee when the conditions provided for in Article 13a (2) and (3) are fulfilled. (RE 35, Left 230)*

2. By way of derogation from paragraph 1, point (e), the Commission may determine the remuneration after the granting of the licence, by way of an implementing act, where that determination requires, further investigation and consultation. This implementing act shall be adopted in accordance with the rules referred to in Article 7(6) (a) and (b), 7(7) and 7(8).

Article 9

Remuneration

1. The licensee shall pay an adequate remuneration to the rights-holder. The amount of the remuneration shall be determined by the Commission and specified in the Union compulsory licence.

1a. The rights-holder shall receive the remuneration within a pre-established timeframe as agreed with the Commission. (RE 36)

2. The remuneration shall ~~not exceed 4 % of~~ **be determined based on the** total gross revenue generated by the licensee ~~through the relevant from the pertinent~~ activities ~~under governed~~ **by** the Union compulsory licence. **(RE 37)**

3. When determining the remuneration, the Commission shall consider the following:

- (a) the economic value of the relevant activities authorised under the Union compulsory licence.
- (b) whether the rights-holder has received public support to develop the invention.
- (c) the degree to which development costs have been amortized by the rightsholder.
- (d) where relevant, the humanitarian circumstances relating to the granting of the Union compulsory licence.

(da) the possible disclosure of trade secrets pursuant to Article 13a(2) and (3) and the relevant limitations to the protection of trade secrets according to Directive (EU) 2016/94; that disclosure shall give rise to adequate compensation for the rights-holder. (RE 38, Greens 244)

4. If the published patent application for which a compulsory licence has been granted does not subsequently lead to the granting of a patent, the rights-holder shall refund the remuneration paid under this article to the licensee.

Article 10

Obligations to be fulfilled by the licensee

1. The licensee shall be authorised to exploit the protected invention covered by the Union compulsory license only under the following obligations:

- (a) the number of crisis-relevant products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence does not exceed **the defined quantities and** what is necessary to meet the needs of the Union; **(EPP 247)**

(b) the relevant activities are carried out solely for the supply of the crisis-relevant products in the Union market;

(c) the products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence are clearly identified, through specific labelling or marking, as being manufactured and marketed pursuant to this Regulation.

(ca) a detailed account of the products produced under the Union compulsory licence; (RE 39, EPP 249)

(cb) treat the information acquired in relation to the Union compulsory licence with utmost confidentiality; refraining, in particular, from making trade secrets available to a third party without the consent of the Commission, which should inform and consult the rights-holder in this regard;

(cc) implement all necessary measures to preserve the confidentiality of the rights-holder's trade secrets, as ordered by the Commission pursuant to Article 13a(3) ; (RE 40, EPP 251)

(cd) do not use trade secrets disclosed pursuant to Article 13a(2) beyond the duration of the Union compulsory licence or for any other purpose than those considered as lawful uses under article 13a (2);

(d) the products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence can be distinguished from products manufactured and marketed by the rights-holder or under a voluntary licence granted by the rights-holder by way of special packaging, colouring or shaping, provided that such distinction is feasible and does not have a significant impact on the price of the products;

(e) the packaging of the products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence and any associated marking or leaflet indicate that the products are subject to a Union compulsory licence under this Regulation and specify clearly that the products are exclusively for distribution in the Union and are not to be exported.

(f) before the marketing of the products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence, the licensee shall make available on a website the following information:

(1) the quantities of the products manufactured under the Union compulsory licence per Member State of manufacturing;

(2) the quantities of the products supplied under the Union compulsory licence per Member State of supply;

(3) the distinguishing features of the products under the Union compulsory licence.

The address of the website shall be communicated to the Commission. The Commission shall communicate the address of the website to the Member States.

2. In the event of a failure by the licensee to fulfil the obligations laid down in paragraph 1 of this Article the Commission may:

(a) **immediately** terminate the Union compulsory licence in accordance with Article 14(3); **(ECR 255)**

or (b) impose fines ~~or~~ **and** periodic penalties on the licensee in accordance with Articles 15 and 16. **(EPP 256)**

3. The European Anti-Fraud Office (OLAF) in cooperation with the relevant national authorities of the Member States may, at the request of the rights-holder or on its own initiative, **and on the basis of sufficient elements of proof of misuse**, request access to books and records kept by the licensee, for the purpose of checking whether the content and the conditions of the Union compulsory licence, and in general the provisions of this Regulation, have been complied with. **(Greens 258)**

4. The Commission is empowered to adopt implementing acts establishing rules for the specific labelling or marking referred to in paragraph 1, point (c), and for the packaging, colouring and shaping referred to in point (d) as well as rules for their use and, where relevant, their positioning on the product. Those implementing acts shall be adopted in accordance with the examination procedure referred to in Article 24(2).

Article 13

Relations between rights-holder and licensee

1. The relations between the rights-holder and the licensee who has been granted a Union compulsory licence shall act and cooperate with each other in good faith when performing rights and obligations under this Regulation.

2. In compliance with the good faith obligation, the rights-holder and the licensee shall make their best efforts to fulfil the objective of the Union compulsory licence, taking into account each other's interests **as well as the public interest**. **(RE 41, Greens 266)**

Article 13a

Additional measures complementing the Union compulsory licence

1. **Where necessary , the Commission shall decide, upon a reasoned request by the rights-holder or the licensee, or on its own initiative, on additional measures complementing the Union compulsory licence to ensure it achieves its objective as well as to facilitate and ensure the good collaboration between the rights-holder and the licensee.**

2. **Where strictly necessary, the Commission shall request the disclosure of the rights-holder's trade secrets to the licensee to the extent required to provide him with the necessary know-how to achieve the objective for which the Union compulsory licence is granted under this Regulation. The lawful uses of the trade secrets by the licensee shall be strictly limited to the manufacturing of the crisis-relevant products in view of fulfilling the objective for which the Union compulsory licence has been granted.**

3. Where the rights-holder is requested to disclose his trade secrets in accordance with paragraph 3, the Commission shall, prior to the disclosure of trade secrets, order the licensee to put in place all appropriate technical and organisational measures that the rights-holder reasonably identifies as necessary to preserve the confidentiality of trade secrets, in particular in relation to third parties, including, as appropriate, the use of model contractual terms, confidentiality agreements, strict access protocols, technical standards or the application of codes of conduct.

If the licensee fails to implement the necessary measures required by the Commission, the Commission may withhold or, as the case may be, suspend the disclosure of trade secrets until the situation is corrected by the licensee.

4. Appropriate remuneration to the rights-holders in compensation for the disclosure of their trade secrets shall be granted in accordance with Directive (EU) 2016/943.

5. Where the Commission considers adopting additional measures as referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2, it shall consult the advisory body referred to in Article 6.

6. The implementing acts referred to in paragraphs 1 and 2 shall be adopted in accordance with the rules referred to in Article 7(6), points (a) and (b), and Article 7(7) and (8).

(RE 42, Greens 268, S&D 269)

Article 14

Review and termination of the Union compulsory licence

1. The Commission shall review the Union compulsory licence upon reasoned request by the rights-holder or the licensee or on its own initiative and shall, where needed, modify the specifications referred to in Article 8 by means of an implementing act. Where necessary, the Union compulsory licence shall be modified to indicate the complete list of rights and rights-holders covered by the compulsory licence.

~~**2. Where necessary, the Commission shall decide upon reasoned request by the rightsholder or the licensee or on its own initiative on additional measures complementing the Union compulsory licence to ensure it achieves its objective as well as to facilitate and ensure the good collaboration between the rights-holder and the licensee. (RE 43)-**~~

3. A Union compulsory licence may be terminated by the Commission by means of an implementing act where the circumstances which led to it cease to exist and are unlikely to recur or where the licensee fails to comply with the obligations laid down in this Regulation.

4. When the Commission considers modifying, ~~**adopting additional measures as referred to in paragraph 2**~~, or terminating the Union compulsory licence, it ~~**may**~~ **shall** consult the advisory body referred to in Article 6 ~~**as well as the rights-holders and licensees. (RE 44, EPP 276)**~~

4a new) When the Commission considers terminating the Union compulsory licence it shall ensure that there is a sufficient transitional period put in place (S&D 278)

5. When terminating the Union compulsory licence, the Commission may require that the licensee, within a reasonable period of time, arrange for any goods in its possession, custody,

power or control to be redirected or otherwise disposed of in the manner determined by the Commission in consultation with the rights-holder and at the expense of the licensee.

6. The implementing acts referred to in paragraph 1, 2 and 3 shall be adopted in accordance with the rules referred to in Article 7(6) (a) and (b), 7(7) and 7(8). **(RE 45)**

Recital 32a

(32a) Where appropriate, the Commission should oblige the rights-holder to disclose the trade secrets which are strictly necessary in order to achieve the purpose of the Union compulsory licence. In such cases, rights holders should receive an adequate remuneration. Indeed, it is possible that the detailed description of how to carry out the invention might not be sufficient and complete enough to enable the licensee to efficiently use that invention. This could encompass, without being exhaustively limited to, the comprehensive transfer of necessary technology, expertise, data, samples, and reference products essential for production and obtaining market authorisation in collaboration with the licensee, taking into account both the rights-holder and the licensee's interests. In cases where that additional information and know-how is necessary, some of which is an undisclosed trade secret, the disclosure of that necessary trade secret, with a view to only achieving the purpose of exercising the Union compulsory licence pursuant to this Regulation, should be considered to be lawful within the meaning of Article 3(2) and Article 5 of Directive (EU) 2016/943 of the European Parliament and the Council. While this Regulation requires the disclosure of trade secrets only when they are strictly necessary in order to achieve the purpose of the Union compulsory licence, it should be interpreted in such a manner as to preserve the protection afforded to trade secrets under Directive (EU) 2016/943. The Commission should require from the licensee(s) to put in place all appropriate measures reasonably identified by the rights-holder, including contractual, technical and organisational measures, to ensure the confidentiality of trade secrets, in particular vis-à-vis third parties and the protection of the legitimate interests of all parties. To that end, right holders should identify trade secrets prior to the disclosure. Those appropriate measures may consist in model contractual terms, confidentiality agreements, strict access protocols, technical standards and the application of codes of conduct. Where the licensee fails to implement the measures required for preserving the confidentiality of the trade secrets, the Commission should be able to withhold or suspend the disclosure of trade secrets until the situation is corrected by the licensee. Any use, acquisition or disclosure of trade secrets which would not be necessary to fulfil the objective of the Union compulsory licence or which would go beyond the duration of the Union compulsory licence should be considered to be unlawful within the meaning of that Directive. (RE 14, Greens 106)

CA 4

Articles 15, 16

Article 15

Fines

1. The Commission may by decision impose on the licensee or the rights-holder fines not exceeding 6 % of their respective total turnover in the preceding business year where, intentionally or negligently:

(a) the licensee fails to comply with its obligations under Article 9(1) or Article 10(1);

(b) the rights-holder or the licensee fail to comply with the principle of good faith and cooperation referred to in Article 13; or

(c) the rights-holder or the licensee fail to comply with any obligation resulting from the additional measures complementing the Union compulsory licence as referred to in Articles 8(1)(h) and **Article 13a(1) and (2)**, as specified in the relevant implementing act. **(RE 46)**

(ca) the licensee does not comply with the prohibition as referred in Article 11; (ECR 281)

2. In fixing the amount of the fine, regard shall be had to the gravity, to the recurrence of the infringement and to the duration of the infringement.

Article 16

Periodic penalty payments

1. The Commission may, by decision, impose on the licensee or the rights-holder periodic penalty payments not exceeding 5 % of their respective average daily turnover in the preceding business year per day and calculated from the date appointed by the decision, in order to compel:

(a) the licensee to put an end to an infringement of its obligations under Article 10(1);

(b) the licensee and the rights-holder to put an end to the infringement of Article 13; or

(c) the rights-holder or the licensee to comply with any obligation resulting from the additional measures complementing the Union compulsory licence as referred to in Articles 8(1)(h) and **Article 13a(1) and (2)**, as specified in the relevant implementing act. **(RE 47)**

(ca) the licensee to put an end to an infringement of the prohibition as referred in Article 11; (ECR 283)

2. Where the licensee or the rights-holder have satisfied the obligation which the periodic penalty payment was intended to enforce, the Commission may fix the definitive amount of the periodic penalty payment at a figure lower than that which would arise under the original decision.

CA 6

Articles 19, 20, 21, 22, 25, 26

Annex

New recital 40a

Article 19

Right to be heard and access to the file

1. Before adopting a decision pursuant to Article 15 or 16, the Commission shall give the licensee or the rights-holder the opportunity of being heard ***and fully involved in the procedure*** on the alleged infringement which is to be made subject to a fine or periodic penalty payments. ***(RE 48, EPP 284)***

2. The licensee or the rights-holder may submit its observations on the alleged infringement within a reasonable period set by the Commission, which may not be less than 14 days.

(2a new) The Commission shall reply to the observations made by the licensee or the right holder and in case of a rejection of the observations, shall provide a justification within a reasonable period of time which shall not exceed 7 days. (RE 49)

3. The Commission shall base its decisions only on objections on which the parties concerned have been able to comment.

4. The rights of defence of the parties concerned shall be fully respected in the proceedings. They shall be entitled to have access to the Commission's file under the terms of a negotiated disclosure, subject to the legitimate interest of the licensee or the rights-holder or other person concerned in the protection of their commercially sensitive information and trade secrets ***fully in line with existing legislation for the protection of data and trade secrets***. The Commission shall have the power to adopt decisions setting out such terms of disclosure, in case of disagreement between the parties. The right of access to the file of the Commission shall not extend to confidential information and internal documents of the Commission, other competent authorities or other public authorities of the Member States. In particular, the right of access shall not extend to correspondence between the Commission and those authorities. Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the Commission from disclosing and using information necessary to prove an infringement. ***(ECR 285)***

5. If the Commission considers it necessary, it may also hear other natural or legal persons. Applications to be heard on the part of such persons shall, where they show a sufficient interest, be granted.

Article 20

Publication of decisions

1. The Commission shall publish the decisions it adopts pursuant to Article 15 and Articles 16. Such publication shall state the names of the parties and the main content of the decision, including any fines or penalties imposed.
2. The publication shall have regard to the rights and legitimate interests of the licensee, the rights-holder or any third parties in the protection of their confidential information.

Article 21

Review by the Court of Justice of the European Union

In accordance with Article 261 **and 263** TFEU, the Court of Justice of the European Union has unlimited jurisdiction to review decisions by which the Commission:

- ***has granted a compulsory licence. It may cancel or amend its terms and conditions. (EPP 288, 289, 290, 291)***
- has imposed fines or periodic penalty payments. It may cancel, reduce or increase the fine or periodic penalty payment imposed.

Article 22

Reporting on national compulsory licences

When a national compulsory licence has been granted ***for the public interest or*** for the purpose of addressing a national crisis or emergency, the Member State shall notify the Commission of the granting of the licence and of the specific conditions attached to it. ***(Greens 292)***

The information provided shall include the following:

- (a) the purpose of the national compulsory licence and its legal basis in national law;
- (b) the name and address of the licensee;
- (c) the products concerned and, to the extent possible, the concerned intellectual property rights and rights-holders;
- (d) the remuneration to be paid to the rights-holder;
- (e) the quantity of products to be supplied under the licence;

(f) the duration of the licence.

Article 25

Evaluation

The Commission shall, by the last day of the third year following the granting of the Union compulsory licence in accordance with Article 7, present an evaluation report to the Council, the European Parliament and the European Economic and Social Committee on the application of this Regulation.

1a. By ... [two years after the date of entry into force of this Regulation] and every two years thereafter, the Commission shall assess whether the list in the Annex is up-to-date in light of the adoption of future legislative acts in relation to an emergency or crisis mode. If the list of the Annex is no longer up-to-date, the Commission shall assess its consequences. The Commission shall submit its assessment to the European Parliament and the Council, accompanied, where appropriate, by legislative proposals to amend the Annex.

In case of exceptional threats to public safety or to national security, the Commission shall carry out the assessment pursuant to paragraph 1a without undue delay.

New recital 40a

While the Annex is to be updated by any future legislative act in relation to an emergency or crisis mode, the Commission should nevertheless monitor the situation and assess whether the list in the Annex has been properly updated. If it appears that this list is no longer up-to-date, the Commission should assess its consequences. In any event, the Commission should submit its assessment to the European Parliament and the Council accompanied, where appropriate, by legislative proposals to amend the Annex. Although the Commission should carry out this assessment every two years from the date of entry into force of this Regulation, it is understood that, given the rapid changes in current European and global situation, the Commission should carry out that assessment without undue delay in the event of exceptional threats to public safety or to national security.

Article 26

Entry into force and application (Greens 295)

This Regulation shall enter into force on the day following that of its publication in the Official Journal of the European Union. This Regulation shall be binding in its entirety and directly applicable in all Member States.

(1a new) It shall apply from [the first day of the month following the period of twelve months after the date of entry into force]. (Greens 296)

Annex **(RE 51, 297)**

Union crisis or emergency mechanism	Crisis mode or emergency mode	Competent Advisory Body
1. Regulation XXX/XX of the European Parliament and of the Council establishing a Single Market Emergency Instrument and repealing Council Regulation (EC) 2679/98 [COM(2022) 459]	Single Market emergency mode activated by means of a Council implementing act [Article 14 of Regulation XXX/XX] [COM(2022) 459]	Advisory Group [Article 4 of Regulation XXX/XX] [COM(2022) 459]
2. Regulation (EU) 2022/2371 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 November 2022 on serious cross-border threats to health and repealing Decision No 1082/2013/EU	Public health emergency at Union level formally recognized by means of a Commission implementing act [Article 23 of Regulation (EU) 2022/2371]	Health Security Committee [Article 24 of Regulation (EU) 2022/2371]

3. Council Regulation (EU) 2022/2372 of 24 October 2022 on a framework of measures for ensuring the supply of crisis-relevant medical countermeasures in the event of a public health emergency at	Emergency framework activated by the adoption of a Council Regulation [Article 3 of Regulation (EU) 2022/2372]	The Health Crisis Board [Article 5 of Regulation (EU) 2022/2372]
4. Regulation XXX/XX establishing a framework of measures for strengthening Europe's semiconductor ecosystem [COM(2022) 46]	Crisis stage activated by a Commission implementing act [Article 18 of Regulation XXX/XXX] [COM(2022) 46]	European Semiconductor Board [Article 23 of Regulation XXX/XXX] [COM(2022) 46]
5. Regulation (EU) 2017 of the European Parliament and the Council of 25 October 2017 concerning measures to safeguard the security of gas supply and repealing Regulation (EU) No 994/2010	Union emergency declared by the Commission [Article 12 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1938]	Gas Coordination Group [Article 4 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1938]

CA 7

Citation 1

All recitals, except 6a (in CA 1), 37 (INTA exclusive), 32a (in CA 3), 40a (in CA 6), 28, 29, 30

Citation 1

Having regard to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, and in particular Articles 114 and 207 thereof,

Rec. 1

Crises require the setting-up of exceptional, swift, ~~and~~adequate **and proportionate** measures able to provide means to address the consequences of the crisis, ***without unnecessarily and disproportionately affecting citizens rights or the protection of intellectual property rights of businesses***. In this context, the use of patented products or processes could prove indispensable to address the consequences of a crisis. Voluntary licensing agreements usually suffice to licence the patent rights on these products and allow their supply in the Union territory. Voluntary agreements are the most adequate, quick, and efficient solution to allow the use of patented products ~~including in~~ **and to scale up production in** crises. Nevertheless, voluntary agreements may not always be available or only under inadequate conditions such as lengthy delivery times. In such cases, compulsory licensing can provide a solution to allow access to patented products, in particular products necessary to tackle the consequences of a crisis. **(RE 1, EPP 53, Greens 54)**

Rec. 2

In the context of the **Union** crisis or emergency mechanisms ***having a cross border effect in the Union and involving two or more Member States***, the Union should therefore have the possibility to rely on compulsory licensing ***to adequately respond to the needs commanded by the public interest***. The activation of a crisis or an emergency mode or the declaration of a crisis or a state of emergency addresses obstacles to free movement of goods, services, and persons in crises and shortages of crisis-relevant goods and services. In cases where access to crisis relevant products and processes protected by a patent cannot be achieved through voluntary cooperation, compulsory licensing can help in lifting any patent related barriers and thus ensure the supply of products or services needed to confront an ongoing crisis or emergency. It is therefore important that, in the context of said crisis mechanisms, the Union can rely on an efficient and effective compulsory licensing scheme at Union level, which is uniformly applicable within the Union. This would guarantee a functioning internal market, ensuring the supply and the free movement of crisis-critical products subject to compulsory licencing in the internal market. **(Greens 55)**

Rec. 3

The possibility of using compulsory licences in situations of national emergency or other circumstances of extreme urgency is explicitly envisaged under the Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights ('TRIPS Agreement')¹.

Rec. 4

All Member States have implemented compulsory licensing frameworks for patents in their national law. National laws usually allow compulsory licensing on the ground of public interest or in the event of an emergency. However, divergences exist across Member States, as regards the grounds, conditions, and procedures under which a compulsory licence can be granted. This results in a fragmented, suboptimal, and uncoordinated system preventing the Union from effectively relying on compulsory licensing when addressing a cross-border crisis.

Rec. 5

¹ OJ L 336, 23.12.1994, p. 214

National compulsory licensing systems only operate within the national territory. They are designed to meet the needs of the population of the issuing Member State and to satisfy the public interest of that Member State. This limited territorial reach of a national compulsory licensing system is reinforced by the fact that there is no exhaustion of the patent right regarding products manufactured under a compulsory licence. Consequently, compulsory licensing schemes do not provide an adequate solution for crossborder manufacturing processes, and therefore there is no functioning internal market for product manufactured under a compulsory licence. Apart from the fact that the issuance of multiple national compulsory licences is a high hurdle for cross-border supply within the single market, it also bears the risk of contradicting and incoherent decisions among Member States. Consequently, the current compulsory licensing framework appears inadequate to address the realities of the internal market and its inherent cross-border supply chains. This suboptimal compulsory licensing framework prevents the Union from relying on an additional instrument when facing crises, ***in particular and*** when voluntary agreements are unavailable ***and cannot be reached within four weeks***. At a time where the Union and its Member States are striving to improve their resilience to crises, it is necessary to provide for an optimal compulsory licensing system for crisis management that takes the full advantage of the internal market and allows Member States to support one another in crises. **(EPP 59).**

Rec. 6

Therefore, it is necessary to establish a compulsory licence for crisis or emergency management at Union level. Under this system, the Commission should be empowered to grant a compulsory licence that is valid throughout the Union and that allows the manufacturing and distribution of products necessary to address a crisis or emergency in the Union ('Union compulsory licence').

Rec. 7

In recent years, the European Union has adopted several crisis mechanisms to improve its resilience to crises or emergencies affecting the Union. The recent mechanisms include the Single Market Emergency Instrument (SMEI) established under Regulation (EU) No XXX/XX [COM(2022) 459] and Regulation (EU) No 2022/2371 under which the Commission may recognise a public health emergency at Union level. In the event of a public health emergency at Union level a framework of measures for ensuring the supply of crisis-relevant medical countermeasures might be activated under Regulation (EU) No 2022/2372. Furthermore, in case of a significant shortage of semiconductors due to serious disruptions in their supply, the Commission may activate a crisis stage by means of implementing acts under Regulation (EU) No XXX/XX (Chips Act) [COM(2022) 46].

Rec. 8

These mechanisms provide for the activation of an emergency or crisis mode and aim at providing the means to address Union emergencies. By allowing the Commission to grant a compulsory licence when a crisis or emergency mode has been activated by a Union legal act, the necessary synergy between the existing crisis mechanisms and a Union wide compulsory licencing scheme is achieved. In such a case, the determination of the existence of a crisis or emergency depends solely on the Union legal act underlying the crisis mechanism and the

crisis definition included therein. For the sake of legal certainty, the crisis mechanisms that qualify as Union emergency or extreme urgency measures and that can trigger a Union compulsory licence should be listed in an Annex to this Regulation.

Rec. 9

To ensure optimal efficiency of the Union compulsory licence as a tool to address crises, it should be made available in respect of a granted patent or utility model, of a published patent application or a supplementary protection certificate. The Union compulsory licence should equally apply to a national patents, European patents and European patents with unitary effect.

Rec. 12

The Union compulsory licence should also apply to published patent applications for national patents and for European patents. As the grant of a patent after the publishing of the patent application can take years, targeting only inventions protected by a granted patent could prevent an effective and timely crisis response. In crises, solutions can derive from the latest state-of-the-art technology. Moreover, certain national patent legislations, as well as the European Patent Convention, provide for protection of patent applicants with regard to unconsented use of their inventions and the corresponding possibility for such applicants to licence the use of their patent application rights. In order to ensure that a Union compulsory licence on a published patent application continues to keep its effects once the patent is granted, the Union compulsory licence for published patent applications should extend to the patent once granted to the extent that the crisis-relevant product still falls within the scope of the patent claims.

Rec. 14

When a compulsory licence has been granted, regulatory data protection may, if still in force, prevent the effective use of the compulsory licence as it impedes the authorisation of generic medicinal products. This would result in serious negative consequences for Union compulsory licences granted to tackle a crisis, as this could hamper access to the medicinal products needed to address the crisis. For this reason, Union pharmaceutical legislation (cf. Art. 80 para. 4 of Directive (EU) No XXX/XX [COM(2023)192]) provides for the suspension of data exclusivity and market protection when a compulsory licence has been issued to tackle a public health emergency. Such suspension is allowed only in relation to the compulsory licence granted and its beneficiary and must comply with the objectives, the territorial scope, the duration, and the subject-matter of the granted compulsory licence. The suspension means that the data exclusivity and market protection produce no effect in relation to the licensee of the compulsory licence while that licence is in effect. When the compulsory licence ends, the data exclusivity and market protection resume their effect. The suspension should not result in an extension of the original duration of the regulatory data protection.

Rec.15

In order to ensure as much coherence as possible with existing crisis mechanisms *and their requirements pertaining to the public interest* and with other Union legislation, the definition of a ‘crisis-relevant product’ should be based on the definition adopted in the Single Market Emergency Instrument (SMEI) but should be more general in order to cover products related to different kinds of crises or emergencies. (*Greens 72*)

Rec.16

A Union compulsory licence authorises the use of a protected invention without the consent of the rights-holder. Therefore, it must only be granted exceptionally *with the purpose to safeguard the public interest, as a last resort mechanism*, and under conditions that take into account the interests of the rights-holder. This includes a clear determination of the scope, duration and territorial coverage of the licence *strictly in line with the duration of the crisis and the purpose for which the compulsory licence was granted*. In the context of a Union level crisis mechanism, the crisis mode or emergency mode is activated or declared for a limited period of time. Where a Union compulsory licence is granted within such framework, the duration of the licence shall not extend beyond the duration of the activated or declared crisis or emergency mode and should not in principle exceed 12 months, unless a renewal is required by the continued existence of the circumstances that led to the granting of the licence. . In order to ensure that the compulsory licence fulfils its objective as well as its conditions, the use of the invention should only be authorised to a qualified person able to manufacture the crisis-relevant product and to pay a reasonable remuneration to the rights-holder. (*EPP 75, S&D 76*)

Rec. 17

When considering the granting of a Union compulsory licence, the Commission should, in order to be able to take a well-informed decision, be assisted by an advisory body. The consultation of the advisory body should arise early in the discussions on the need to issue a compulsory licence under the relevant instrument. Discussions on whether there is a need for a Union compulsory licence will often start already in the context of the work of the advisory body involved in the context of the relevant Union crisis or emergency mechanisms. In such case, there is no need for the Commission to convene the advisory body but rather to swiftly indicate that that body also has the competence to assess the need for compulsory licensing at Union level, and the conditions thereof. Clarification as regards the competence of the advisory body should be given early in the process, as soon as concrete consideration of using compulsory licensing at Union level is expressed by the Commission.

Rec. 18

The participation of an advisory body aims at guaranteeing a comprehensive, thorough, and concrete assessment of the situation, taking into consideration the individual merits of each situation. It is therefore important that the advisory body has the right composition, expertise, and procedures to support the Commission when deciding on whether to grant a Union compulsory licence and under what conditions. Union crisis mechanisms usually include the setting-up of an advisory body ensuring coordination of action of the Commission and relevant bodies and agencies, the Council and the Member States. In this respect, an advisory group is set up under SMEI. Regulation (EU) No 2022/2371 provides for a Health Crisis Board and under Regulation (EU) No XXX/XX (Chips Act) [COM/2022) 46], the Commission relies on the Semiconductor Board. Those advisory bodies have the right

composition, expertise, and procedures to address the crises and emergencies for which they have been set-up. When compulsory licensing is being discussed in the context of such crisis instrument, relying on the advisory body set-up for the specific instrument allows the Commission to be adequately advised and avoid duplication of advisory bodies, leading to incoherences between processes. The competent advisory bodies ~~shall~~**should** be listed, together with the corresponding crisis mechanisms, in an Annex to this Regulation. ***The Commission should ensure that representatives of other crisis-relevant bodies at Union level participate in, and are invited as observers to, the relevant meetings of the advisory body in order to ensure consistency with the measures implemented through other Union mechanisms. It is important that the Commission invites as observers national representatives from all national authorities responsible for issuing compulsory licenses under their national patent laws.*** In case the Union crisis mechanism does not provide for an advisory body, ~~the Commission should set up an ad-hoc~~ the advisory body ~~for the granting of the Union (the ‘ad-hoc advisory body’).~~***should be constituted on an ad-hoc basis by the Commission and should be composed of representatives of the institutions and bodies of the Member States that exercise the competence to grant national compulsory licences under national law. (RE 5)***

Rec.19

The role of the advisory body is to advise the Commission when discussions arise on the need to rely on compulsory licensing at Union level. It should provide the Commission with a non-binding opinion. Its main tasks include assisting of the Commission in the determination of the necessity to rely on compulsory licensing at Union level, and in the determination of the conditions for such licensing. When the advisory body is already set up, its existing rules of procedure should apply. As regards ad hoc advisory bodies, they should be composed ~~of one representative of each Member State those representatives of national competent authorities~~ in order to provide the Commission with information and input concerning the situation on the national level, including information on manufacturing capacities, potential licensees and proposals for voluntary solutions. In addition, the advisory body should have the function of collecting and analysing relevant data, as well as ensuring coherence and cooperation with other crisis relevant bodies at Union and national level in order to ensure an adequate, coordinated and coherent crisis reply at Union level. ***(EPP 83)***

Rec. 20

The Commission should grant the Union compulsory licence in the light of the non-binding opinion of the advisory body. Persons, in particular the licensee and the rights-holder, whose interests may be affected by the Union compulsory licence should be given the opportunity to submit their comments, ***within a reasonable timeframe, to the advisory body upon receiving the case file and analyses presented to or conducted by the advisory body, and be provided with any other pertinent information they require for their evaluation of the potential repercussions of a proposed Union compulsory licence on their intellectual property rights.*** These elements should enable the Commission to consider the individual merits of the situation and determine, on that basis, the adequate conditions of the licence, including an adequate remuneration to be paid by the licensee to the rights-holder. To avoid overproduction of products manufactured under a Union compulsory licence, the Commission should also consider any existing compulsory licences at national level. ***(RE 7, ECR 84, EPP 85).***

Rec. 21

The Commission should guarantee that the rights-holder has the right to be heard before the adoption of the Union compulsory licence. Therefore, the Commission should inform the concerned rights-holder, ~~where possible~~ individually, without undue delay that a Union compulsory licence might be granted. The involvement of the rights-holder should be possible once there are ongoing advanced discussions in the relevant advisory body as regards the granting of a Union compulsory licence. **(RE 8)**

Rec. 22

~~When informed of advanced discussions as regards~~ **Considering that voluntary agreements are the most suitable way to deal with patented products or processes in a time of crisis, then prior to any decision by the Commission on the granting of a Union compulsory licence, the rights-holder ~~should have the possibility to propose~~ shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to negotiate a voluntary such agreement. A time period of four weeks should ~~the circumstances of the Union crisis or emergency, including~~ be sufficient to enable good faith and meaningful negotiations, taking into account the urgency of the situation, ~~allow it~~.** The rights-holder should also be given the opportunity to comment on the need for a Union compulsory licence and on the conditions of the licence, including remuneration, should it be granted. To this end, the rights-holder should be allowed to provide the Commission with written or oral comments and any information the rights-holder considers useful to allow the Commission to make a fair, comprehensive, and thorough assessment of the situation. The Commission should allow the rights-holder a reasonable period of time to provide comments and information, considering the **balance to be made between the public interest and the** situation of the rights-holder, and **considering** the urgency of the situation. The comments of the rights-holder should, where relevant, be transmitted by the Commission to the competent advisory body **on a timely basis**. In order for confidential information to be shared with the Commission, the Commission shall ensure a safe environment for the sharing of this information and should take measures to preserve the confidentiality of the documents provided by the rights-holder in the context of that procedure. Once a Union compulsory licence has been granted, the Commission should notify the rights-holder as soon as reasonably practicable. **(EPP 89, Greens 90)**

Rec. 23

The initiation of ~~the any~~ compulsory licensing procedure should ~~be publicised, by means of a notice published in the Official Journal of the European Union. This notice should include information on the discussions about the granting of a Union compulsory licence in the context of a Union crisis or emergency mechanism. This notice should also help the Commission in identifying the first~~ involve the identification of the intellectual property rights concerned, the rights-holders concerned, as well as potential licensees, **with the involvement of the national Intellectual Property Offices. It should be publicised by means of a notice published in the Official Journal of the European Union.** **(RE 11)**

Rec. 24

The Commission should, assisted by the advisory body, ~~make its best efforts to~~ identify in its decision the patent, patent application, supplementary protection certificate and utility model

related to the crisis-relevant products, and the rightsholders of those intellectual property rights. In certain circumstances, the identification of intellectual property rights and of their respective rights-holders may require lengthy and complex investigations. ~~In such cases, a complete identification of all intellectual property rights and of their rights-holders may seriously undermine the efficient use of the Union compulsory licence to swiftly tackle the crisis or the emergency. Therefore, where the identification of all those intellectual property rights or rights-holders would significantly delay the granting of the Union compulsory licence, the Commission should be able to initially only indicate in the licence the non-proprietary name of the product for which it is sought.~~ The Commission should nevertheless identify all applicable and relevant intellectual property rights and their rights-holder before granting the compulsory licence as soon as possible and amend the implementing act accordingly. ~~The amended:~~ The implementing act should also identify any necessary safeguards and remuneration to be paid to each identified rights-holder. (RE 12)

Rec. 25

Where the rights-holder or not all the rights-holders could be identified in a reasonable period of time, the Commission should ~~exceptionally be entitled to not~~ grant the Union compulsory licence. ~~by referring only to the non-proprietary name of the crisis-relevant product where it is absolutely necessary considering the urgency of the situation. Nevertheless, after the granting of the Union compulsory licence, the Commission should identify, notify and consult the concerned rights-holders as quickly as possible, including by relying on publication measures and on national Intellectual Property Offices.~~ (RE 13)

Rec. 27

The licensee should pay an adequate remuneration to the rights-holder as determined by the Commission. The amount of the remuneration should be determined considering *the total gross revenue generated by the licensee through the acts under the Union compulsory licence*, the economic value of the exploitation authorised under the licence to the licensee and to the Member States concerned by the crisis, any public support received by the rights-holder to develop the invention, the degree to which development costs have been amortized as well as humanitarian circumstances relating to the granting of the Union compulsory licence. ~~In addition,~~ The Commission should also consider the comments made by the rights-holder and the assessment made by the advisory body with regard to the amount of the remuneration. ~~In any case, the remuneration should not exceed 4 % of the total gross revenue generated by the licensee through the acts under the Union compulsory licence. This percentage is the same as the one provided for under Regulation 816/2006. In the event of a compulsory licence granted on the basis of a published patent application that ultimately does not lead to the granting of a patent, the rights-holder would have no ground to receive remuneration under the compulsory licence, as the subject matter for the receipt of the remuneration has not materialised. In such circumstances, the rights-holder should refund the remuneration it received under the compulsory licence.~~ (EPP 99)

Rec. 31

The legal validity of the implementing act granting the Union compulsory license, or any subsequent implementing act, should be subject to judicial review.

Rec. 32

The relation between the rights-holder and the licensee should be governed by the principle of good faith. The rights-holder and licensee should work towards the success of the Union compulsory licence and collaborate, where necessary, to ensure that the Union compulsory licence effectively and efficiently fulfils its objective. The Commission may act as an enabler in achieving the good-faith cooperation between the rights-holder and the licensee, taking into account interests of all parties. In that respect, the Commission should also be entitled to take additional measures in line with Union law to ensure that the compulsory licence meets its objective and ensure that necessary crisis-relevant goods can be made available in the Union. Such additional measures may include requesting further information which is deemed indispensable to achieve the objective of the compulsory licence. These measures should always include adequate safeguards to ensure the protection of the legitimate interests of all parties.

Rec 32b.

This Regulation should guarantee that the Commission has the authority to compel rights-holders to provide all necessary information to facilitate the rapid and efficient production of critical crisis-related products, such as pharmaceuticals and other health-related items. This information should encompass details about know-how, particularly when it is essential for the effective implementation of compulsory licensing. While patent licensing alone might suffice to enable other manufacturers to quickly produce simple pharmaceuticals, in the case of more intricate pharmaceutical products, such as vaccines during a pandemic, it is often insufficient. Where it is essential for the implementation of the compulsory licence, the alternative producer will also require access to know-how information. (RE 15, Greens 107)

Rec. 33

In order to respond appropriately to the crises, the Commission should be authorised to review the conditions of the Union compulsory licence and adapt them to changed circumstances. This should include the modification of the compulsory licence to indicate the complete list of rights and rights-holders covered by the compulsory licence, ~~where this complete identification had not been done initially~~. This should also include the termination of the licence if the circumstances which led to it cease to exist and are unlikely to recur. When deciding on the revision of the Union compulsory licence, the Commission ~~may decide to~~ **shall** consult the competent advisory body for that purpose, ~~as well as the rights-holders and licensees~~. If the Commission intends to change essential components of the Union compulsory licence, such as its duration or remuneration or if the change itself could be the subject of a separate compulsory licence, it should be required to consult the advisory body. **(EPP 108)**

Rec. 34

To prevent and stop any misuse of the Union compulsory licence, specific safeguards should be in place to allow the Commission to take action. In addition to the possibility to terminate the Union compulsory licence, the Commission should be authorised to impose fines and periodic penalty payments on the rights-holder and the licensee in order to enforce the obligations under this Regulation. The penalties should be effective, proportionate and dissuasive, **and should not contravene the usual enforcement measures of Intellectual Property rights as provided by Directive 2004/48/EC. (Greens 111)**

Rec. 35

Compliance with the relevant obligations imposed under this Regulation should be enforceable by means of fines and periodic penalty payments. To that end, appropriate levels of fines and periodic penalty payments should be laid down and the imposition of fines and periodic penalty payments should be subject to appropriate limitation periods in accordance with the principles of proportionality and ne bis in idem. All decisions taken by the Commission under this Regulation are subject to review by the Court of Justice of the European Union in accordance with the TFEU. The Court of Justice of the European Union should have unlimited jurisdiction in respect of **the implementing act granting the compulsory licence, as well as the decisions on** fines and penalty payments in accordance with Article 261 TFEU. **(EPP 112)**

Rec. 36

When a national compulsory licence has been granted for the purpose of addressing a crisis, the Member State or its competent authority should be required to notify the Commission of the granting of the licence, and of the specific conditions attached to it, since it allows the Commission to get an overview of national compulsory licences in the Member States and to take those compulsory licences into account when considering a Union compulsory licence, and in particular when setting the conditions for such licence.

Rec. 38

In order to ensure uniform conditions for the implementation of this Regulation, implementing powers should be conferred on the Commission as regards the granting, complementing, modification or termination of a Union compulsory licence, the determination, **in the absence of an agreement between the rights-holder and the licensee,** of the remuneration to be paid to the rights-holder, the procedural rules for the ad hoc advisory body and the characteristics allowing the identification of products produced under a Union compulsory licence. Those powers should be exercised in accordance with Regulation (EU) No 182/2011 of the European Parliament and of the Council¹². The advisory procedure should be used for the adoption of implementing acts granting, complementing, modifying or terminating a Union compulsory licence, and implementing acts determining the remuneration. The choice of the advisory procedure is justified given that those implementing acts would be adopted in the context of a procedure with considerable participation of the Member States through the consultation of the advisory body. The examination procedure should be used for the adoption of implementing acts establishing procedural rules for the ad

hoc advisory body and implementing acts establishing the characteristics allowing the identification of products produced under a Union compulsory licence. **(EPP 116)**

Rec. 39

The Commission should adopt immediately applicable implementing acts where, in duly justified cases relating to the granting, modification or termination of a Union compulsory licence or the determination of the remuneration, imperative grounds of urgency so require.

Rec. 40

Union compulsory licensing for crisis management is *a last resort* tool that is ~~only~~ used in exceptional circumstances. The evaluation should therefore be conducted only where a Union compulsory licence has been granted by the Commission. The evaluation report should be submitted by the last day of the third year following the granting of the Union compulsory licence, to allow an adequate and substantiated assessment of this Regulation. **(EPP 120).**

Rec. 41

Since a period of time is required to ensure that the framework for the proper functioning of the system for Union compulsory licencing is in place, the application of this Regulation should be deferred.

Rec. 41a.

Since the objective of this Regulation, namely to ensure access to crisis-relevant patented products needed to address crises in the internal market, cannot be sufficiently achieved by the Member States because of the fragmentation of compulsory licensing in the Union and the insufficient territorial scope of national compulsory licensing but can rather, by reason of the scale and effects of the necessary solution, be better achieved at Union level, the Union may adopt measures, in accordance with the principle of subsidiarity as set out in Article 5 of the Treaty on European Union. In accordance with the principle of proportionality as set out in that Article, this Regulation does not go beyond what is necessary in order to achieve those objectives. (RE 16)